Academic Senate Executive Committee Minutes
Monday, November 29, 2010
(Approved)

Call to Order

Senate Chairperson Dan Holland called the meeting to order.
Approval of Executive Committee Minutes of October 18, 2010
Motion XXXXII-26:  By Senator Marquis, seconded by Senator Kalter, to approve the Executive Committee Minutes of October 18, 2010. The minutes were unanimously approved.
Oral Communication:
10.26.10.01
From Provost Everts: Request to Schedule Faculty Caucus for the Selection of Distinguished Professors (Faculty Caucus Executive Session 12/8/10)

Senator Holland: We have from Provost Everts a request to schedule a Faculty Caucus for the Selection of Distinguished Professors. It’s down for the 8th.
Distributed Communications:
10.08.09.05
From Susan Kalter/Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Administrator Selection and Search Policy – Milner and Mennonite Search Committees (Information Item 12/8/10)

Senator Kalter: A year or two ago—I guess this started because of the Milner Dean Search. At that time, Senator Bonnell was on this committee and we noticed that there was a lack of exceptions for Milner and Mennonite in terms of how they did their dean searches went because of the unique situation of having no chair, no real departments, so no chairs. The Senate had to go through a special vote to make it a certain sort of search committee. We decided that shouldn’t happen every time we want to search for a dean of Mennonite or Milner. So Senator Bonnell got together with Senator Borg, who at the time was on the Senate. We are trying to make these departments unique. Senator Bonnell and Senator Tomlin, who are on my committee, discussed this and brought it back to our committee and we all agreed that we should choose option A: “Since Milner Library and Mennonite College of Nursing have no departments (and thus no department chairs), one additional faculty member shall be elected to the search committee. This faculty member should have some degree of administrative experience, if possible.”
Senator Fazel: When this document was originally approved, it was on a three-year review cycle and we have not done that since it was approved several years ago. I realize we are looking at it because of Mennonite and Milner, but I was hoping that we would take a look at the document totally in terms of representatives. That’s for all of the colleges, not just Mennonite and Milner. One issue that we had in the original form when it was presented to the Senate was we would have to present a number of choices and then the Provost would choose the faculty, staff, NTTs and so on. We made amendments on the floor of the Senate and senators voted for tenure/tenure-track and NTTs—that was changed. But everybody else—they did not really…and also this is something I would like the students to think about. Here we are saying one administrative/professional staff member from a list of four members. In other words AP staff do not elect their representatives. They just forward four names and the Provost will choose the representative, which is, to me, not really representation. There is also for civil service and for students. Students will not elect their representatives, but they will forward 10 names and two people are selected from that list. I think that’s up to you whether you think that’s the purpose of representation or is it that the students would like to elect two members.
President Bowman: In the other colleges, who selects the department chair?

Senator Fazel: The Provost.

President Bowman: If that is the parallel we are trying to follow, I think the Provost ought to select a faculty member administrator, because otherwise, if I am sitting in Sheri’s shoes, I’m responsible for this department chair, but I don’t have much input into the composition of the committee.

Senator Holland: She does have two tenure/tenure-track faculty at large who may or not be from the college. There’s the administrator who serves as secretary and is appointed by the Provost. A current or former department chair from the college and the rest of it is the elected members.
Senator Fazel: In the original document, faculty would have had to forward 10 names. We made an amendment on the Senate floor and it was approved that we would elect our representatives. For NTT, another amendment was made and that was changed, but I think representatives of civil service and AP, I really don’t think they felt comfortable making an amendment at that time and also students.

Senator Holland: There was debate and, at the time, the students did not want to change it.

Senator Fazel: At the time, there was also a lot of pressure not to change it, so people were really not comfortable making a motion.
Senator Horst: Would you want to make the person who is standing in for the chair a tenured faculty or, since it’s the College of Nursing, keep it open?
Senator Kalter: We did not discuss that, but I would say the latter. If you are asking for someone with administrative experience, usually that’s a tenured faculty member, but I think neither one of them is in a position right now to want to guarantee that it would be tenured or tenure-track faculty just because of the workload and they do more than their share of university and college service. You could ask Senator Bonnell, but I think maybe the reason that didn’t come up was because she saw that…
Senator Holland:  It some cases in Milner, it might make sense to actually do NTTs since they have so many of those.
Senator Horst: So one additional faculty member of any rank, so it’s clear that even NTTs can serve?

Senator Kalter: My committee will not be able to put this on the agenda until next year if we send it back to committee. The other possibility is that when this gets to the floor, anybody can make amendments to anything. That’s not a great way to go.

Senator Holland: I would suggest that we go ahead and take care of this particular issue and the individual groups should look at it and decide if they want to make that change, Civil Service Council, AP Council and Student Government Association. If they so choose, they could bring it up in the Senate. Does that sound reasonable?

Provost Everts: That’s a good solution, especially given what occurred most recently in the library; it really was the library faculty primarily saying we need someone with administrative experience on the search committee.
Senator Fazel: The other one is whether Provost will make the final decision or if the students will elect their own representatives, and AP and Civil Service will elect their own representatives.
Senator Marquis: I guess I don’t know how the tenure-track are elected. Is it the Senate or Faculty Caucus electing?
Senator Fazel: No, it’s within the colleges.

Senator Marquis: Is there a nomination and election process?

Senator Holland: People volunteer or get volunteered.

Senator Marquis: I don’t know how feasible that ends up being from our standpoint. It’s hard to break down which students are from which colleges and then it’s more difficult to break down from those 8,000 students who might be in one college who’s being nominated and have an election for them.

Senator Holland: They don’t have to be from the same college.

Senator Fazel: I think they should.

Senator Marquis: Typically, we try to get them from the college where the search is going to happen. I feel like it would be pretty difficult for Student Government to have an election. It would end up like Student Government having to approve an appointment.

Senator Fazel: Instead of having a list of 10, you would have to decide.
Senator Marquis: We would have to figure out a different process if we were going to switch from the current process because it wouldn’t work in the same way as it would for faculty. It would take some investigating on our part to see what we want to do. I don’t even know if we have a problem with the ten that gets limited down to two.
Senator Kalter: I will ask Angela and Matt to clarify if they meant to it to be a tenured faculty member in Option A.
Senator Holland: I will contact the chairs of the Civil Service and AP Councils to see whether they want to discuss this.
03.03.10.01
From Rita Bailey/Rules Committee: Statements of Economic Interests Policy (Information Item 12/8/10)

Senator Horst: This was forwarded to the Rules Committee and I believe you wanted clarification on the definition of a Statement of Economic Interests. So Chuck McGuire looked up the law 5 ILCS 420/4A-101, which defines economic interests.
Senator Holland: What are the actual changes?

Senator Horst: The new policy is on the back and this was written by Shane McCreary.

Senator Fazel: Can we express our opinion about different parts of this or is it already just for our information to know because the state mandates, for example, the fees. Are these the kind of things we can discuss?
Senator Horst: I am not familiar with the law. I think that this wanted to limit the number of people who had to file this form.

Senator Holland: My assumption is that anybody who needs to file this form will be notified.

President Bowman: Shane’s revisions are the result of state law and an attempt to make sure we capture everyone who’s covered. I think the problem in the past was that we didn’t have enough people with these quantifiable…
Senator Kalter: I kind of remember part of the conversation. It was last year and I think it might have been me and I said, ‘does this include secretaries who order goods for their offices’. Who does it cover? We were wondering how many people and why some, but not others.

Senator Horst: Chuck McGuire wanted to say it’s what defined in the law.

Senator Fazel: Are secretaries supposed to do this because it says those who have responsibility for the procurement of goods and services.

Provost Everts: The third bullet would take care of that. ‘Supervisory responsibility…’

Senator Fazel: Is it all of the following or any one of them.

Provost Everts: All of them need to be true. That’s my understanding.

Senator Kalter: So for the four bullet points, each of those has to be true?

Provost Everts: That’s my understanding.

Senator Holland: One thing that I would like to make sure of is if it is all four and not just anyone of them.

Senator Horst: I will send a message to Shane and Chuck to add language saying that it has to be all four bullet points.

Senator Kalter: It doesn’t seem that that is clear.
Senator Holland: I was reading it as any one of those.

10.29.10.01
From Ed Stewart/Academic Affairs Committee: Pass/Fail-Credit/No Credit Policy-Revised (Information Item 12/8/10)

Senator Solberg: (inaudible)
Senator Horst: So fail is now D or F?
Senator Solberg: Some schools have to have a C to pass.

Senator Marquis: That’s what it’s been for awhile here.

Senator Holland: That’s what is has been here, but I do know some schools will take a D as passing.

11.11.10.01
From Linda Wedwick/Faculty Affairs Committee: Classified Research Policy-Draft 3 (Information Item 12/8/10)
Senator Wedwick: This one is not that much different than the previous one that we had, but Chuck McGuire did request that we separate the last paragraph out because he felt as though it wasn’t clear that an exception to any part of the policy must be approved by the Review Committee and the Provost. He felt as though it appeared as if there was an exception to the last part. That was the change that was made to the previous one.
11.11.10.02
From Susan Kalter/Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Use of Electronic Equipment for Surveillance Purposes - Revised (Information Item 12/8/10)

Senator Kalter: The very first paragraph was added by my committee after bringing it back to committee. We had brought everything else onto the floor of the Senate as an Information Item and the President reminded us that he is not always in control of everything that happens on this campus.
President Bowman: Right, I couldn’t tell the FBI that they can’t visit us.

Senator Kalter: What we have added is “State and federal government officials conduct ongoing undercover operations in the State of Illinois that involve the use of electronic equipment for surveillance. These operations occasionally take place on campus grounds. Although they are expected to follow all laws protecting individual rights and freedoms, officials are not required to notify any University authorities of the fact, nature, or location of their activities. This policy therefore covers only uses of electronic equipment for surveillance over which the University exercises control and consent.” So I think that is already in practice that you are telling Dan about things that are happening and we have always gotten the notification that things are happening.

11.11.10.03
From Susan Kalter/Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Vice President for University Advancement Survey Form

Senator Kalter: We had last year finalized all of the commentary surveys on the vice presidents except for University Advancement because we were in transition. Both as a courtesy to Ms. Minné and because she may have other things to add to the survey questions as it was drafted last year, Senator Laudner and Senator Ramirez met with her. She only had a few very minor changes. Apparently, SECA, which was on the list as number 2, does not fall under her office. I guess it’s done out of the Department of Communication. We took that off the list. She also wanted us to make sure that, under the Illinois State University Foundation, we included the Chicago Alumni Office. Other than that, she thought the questions were good to go. I think Rules is still working on the rewrite of the Blue Book or whatever it is that we are rewriting to allow these surveys to go out in the spring.
Senator Horst: Yes, we are working on a policy that governs vice presidential evaluations and then there is Blue Book language about what the Executive Committee does. We are going to insert language there. 
Senator Kalter: That’s why we were doing the same policy.

Senator Fazel: Are you both working on that?

Senator Kalter: Apparently, that policy is under its five-year annual review and our committee usually gets it, but I think it went to Rules for the rewrite of the…I don’t know why it went to Rules.

Senator Horst: It went to Rules to put in the vice presidential commentary surveys and the mechanism of how that’s going to work.

Senator Kalter: Do you think that work will be done in time to launch these this year?

Senator Horst: By the end of the year?

Senator Kalter: No, by spring break. I think that we are trying to do it the week before spring break, the week of spring break and the week after spring break.

Senator Horst: Does it really have to be finished?
Senator Kalter: In order to launch them?

Senator Horst: Yes.

Senator Holland: You can always do exceptions, but I think to be above board, we would have to vote in the Senate.

Senator Horst: I will look at what the language says about evaluating vice presidents, but it says something like every three years and she is the only one who has to be evaluated by the campus population, so we just wanted to make it more formal; but I don’t think that it’s necessarily against the rules; it’s just that the rules don’t really say anything.

Senator Fazel: I think that the questions have covered almost everything that the vice presidents have to do, except I think we need one more question about the outcome because all of these questions are about abilities and efforts, but the bottom line is has he or she successfully been effective.
Senator Holland: In some ways, I think that’s up to the President.

Senator Mason: Isn’t that reflected in some of the questions?

Senator Fazel: It’s not as direct. It’s ‘she puts efforts into this; she is able to do this’. It’s like research productivity. At the end of the day, we would like to know how many journal articles we have published. In this case, we are looking at what the short-term and long-run results are.

President Bowman: You could add as a final question, has this vice president been an effective VP of Finance.

Senator Fazel: Overall, how effective do we think the vice president has been, or something to that effect.

Senator Kalter: Would you say that we should add that to all of the surveys?

Senator Holland: I would think so.

11.15.10.01
From Martha Horst/Rules Committee: Academic Freedom Ethics and Grievance Blue Book Revisions – Inclusion of NTT (Information Item 12/8/10)

11.15.10.02
From Martha Horst/Rules Committee: Academic Freedom Ethics and Grievance Policy Revisions – Inclusion of NTT (Information Item 12/8/10)
Senator Horst: My understanding is that, at some point, language regarding non-tenure-track membership on this committee was deleted.

Senator Holland: That is true.

Senator Horst: So that’s what started this whole discussion. In reworking this, Chuck McGuire consulted with some union representatives at HR and the General Council and they wanted to have different representatives for people who are under the union contract and who are not under the union contract.

Senator Kalter: I was trying to figure out how this would work. For example, if a tenured or tenure-track faculty member wants to file a grievance, would this mean that the committee that investigates that grievance would be made up of solely non-tenure track faculty dealing with issues about which they may not be fully versed and vice versa. By having one pool of people that hear grievances, does that mean…

Senator Horst: One faculty hearing committee member will be chosen from the pool for cases where a complainant or respondent is a non-tenure track faculty member. 

Senator Kalter: So the non-tenure track faculty members are there to…

Senator Horst: For cases that involve non-tenure track faculty.

Senator Kalter: Does it specifically exclude them from cases where the person is tenure-track?

President Bowman: And you are suggesting that it should?
Senator Kalter: I suggesting that perhaps it should in both cases. I’m not sure, but there are a lot of aspects of a non-tenure track faculty member’s job that I don’t know about and vice-versa.

Senator Horst: So you don’t think “for cases” is strong enough?

Senator Kalter: I guess I am wondering if that is strong enough. What this does is it says when a non-tenure track person is making a complaint, they are entitled to have a non-tenure-track faculty member on their subcommittee, right? But it doesn’t specify when a tenure-track faculty member is making a complaint, they are entitled not to have…

Senator Fazel: An NTT?

Senator Kalter: Right.

President Bowman: That’s implied, right?

Senator Holland: The only time an NTT will be used is in cases involving an NTT.

Senator Fazel: It does say that when both claimant and respondent are tenured or probationary tenured member, the faculty members shall be drawn from tenured faculty at the top of page 10, third line. I have a question on page 10 about non-tenure track. Who would be on the committee? Three faculty who are tenured, one non-tenure-track faculty…
Senator Horst: Not covered by the NTT agreement.

Senator Fazel: And the remaining non-tenure track faculty member not covered by the NTT agreement. What does that mean: one non-tenure-track and the remaining? 

Senator Holland: I think basically what it’s going to require is that you take…there will be five people. There will be three tenure-line faculty, NTT non-negotiated, the NTT that hadn’t been used in the original hearing, plus one additional NTT, which is obviously going to have to be somebody who is covered by the contract.

Senator Fazel: So the remaining means that they haven’t served on the hearing committee?

Senator Holland: This is a hearing on the appeal.

Senator Horst: You can’t have the person who served on the original committee.
Senator Fazel: Maybe you just want to clarify it.

Senator Horst: So how would you like it rearranged?

Senator Kalter: For maximum clarity, maybe you could cross out “remaining” and say the non-tenure-track faculty member not covered by the NTT negotiated agreement who did not serve on the FHC.
Senator Fazel: So there will be two NTTs and three tenure-track?
Senator Holland: Right.

Senator Fazel: But one of the NTTs would be negotiated?

Senator Holland: One would be negotiated and one would be non-negotiated.

Senator Fazel: So why not say one negotiated NTT and the remaining…in other words so it is totally clear whose on the committee.

Senator Horst: So we are going to say one non-tenure-track faculty member and the remaining non-tenure track member not covered by the NTT negotiated agreement who did not serve on the FHC.

Senator Fazel: So the first one would be one non-tenure track faculty member from the negotiated group and one from the non-negotiated group, because that’s what we are saying, right?

Senator Kalter: Can I take it back to number 8? If what we were just reading about tenured faculty getting five members from the tenured faculty in the appeal, there is nothing mentioned about the hearing committee being of all tenured members.
Senator Fazel: What page are you on?

Senator Kalter: On page six where, after voluntary conciliation, you go to a Faculty Hearing Committee and because it’s not mentioned specifically, one could imagine that a tenured faculty member would have a committee made up of all non-tenure track AFEGC members. I would like to ask if we can insert language that would parallel.

Senator Horst: Perhaps we could insert it in the very beginning when we are electing these people and just say that non-tenure track will serve for non-tenure track cases only.

Senator Holland: I think that would be the easiest way to do it.

Senator Horst: So this is going back to the committee or still going before the Senate?

Senator Holland: I think you could mention it in the Senate and I don’t think anyone would complain about that at all. It is just an Information Item.

Senator Kalter: When, as the committee has been constituted, a faculty member who complains is able to ensure, actually it’s more of the committee, that nobody from that person’s department will serve on any of these—either the Faculty Hearing Committee or the Appeals Committee. With only seven NTTs divided into two pools, there are cases where you might end up without being able to put especially the non-negotiated NTT rep. Let’s say that there is a case that comes up from English with a non-negotiated NTT and they go through the Faculty Hearing…
Senator Horst: But it’s only Mennonite and Milner. They are the only two colleges that have non-negotiated…

Senator Kalter: Well let me give an example from Mennonite. A non-negotiated NTT from nursing brings a complaint but the two people elected here…one is from nursing and one is from another college. So the person from the other college would have to serve on the hearing committee. That means that the person from nursing would have to serve on the appeals committee and you wouldn’t want that to happen.

Senator Horst: I would say that they are elected and they are not necessarily biased.

Senator Kalter: I think it doesn’t matter whether they are biased or not. It’s about privacy for one thing. It is about whether they are biased in some ways, but I think that we would want to steer clear of any conflicts of interest.

Senator Holland: This is somewhat of a conundrum in that you almost have to have—is it really only Mennonite and Milner?

Provost Everts: Non-negotiated.

Senator Holland: You would almost have to have two from each college because if you are going to have a hearing and an appeal, you have to have two from the other college.

Senator Kalter: From an other college.

Senator Holland: The other college. There are only two colleges—Mennonite and Milner.
Senator Kalter: So you would have to have four altogether.

Senator Horst: If you think it’s an issue.

Senator Kalter: I think it’s an issue. I think we should treat all of the faculty who come to this community the same and just because you are from Mennonite doesn’t mean you should have to have somebody on your committee that’s from that department.
Senator Holland: In all likelihood, they won’t be used.

Senator Horst: Each college will elect two non-tenure track faculty members covered by the NTT…no. The non-tenure track faculty members not covered by the NTT negotiated agreement shall elect two of their number. Oh, here it is—to a pool.

Senator Holland: Perhaps this one needs to be thought out a little bit, since it’s only Mennonite and Milner that this applies to.

Senator Horst: But they are electing two of their number, so that solves the problem, doesn’t it?

Senator Holland: Well, each college. That means you can have one from Mennonite and one from Milner or two from Milner and then only people from Mennonite could lodge a complaint.
Senator Horst: So we need three.

Senator Holland: Two from each college so you could have a hearing and an appeal.

Senator Horst: Right, so aren’t we electing two from each college?

Senator Holland: Yes, we are. If there are other departments that have non-negotiated NTTs, then you just have to make sure that they are from three different locations.

Senator Kalter: How did we determine it was only Milner and Mennonite?

Provost Everts: That’s what’s generally understood, but again, Chuck may have some specifics associated with that, but on this particular question, generally the answer is you are talking Mennonite and Milner.

Senator Fazel: There are a number of changes. Isn’t it better to send it back to the committee?

Senator Holland: Just to be absolutely sure that there is no one else outside of those departments, perhaps we need to do better research. Chris Cleavenger…

Provost Everts: I’ll talk to Chuck about it tomorrow.

Senator Horst: So you are going to talk to him?

Provost Everts: Yes.

Senator Horst: And we are going to send this back to our committee.
Proposed Agenda for Academic Senate on December 8, 2010: 
Academic Senate Meeting Agenda

Wednesday, December 8, 2010

7:00 P.M.

OLD MAIN ROOM, BONE STUDENT CENTER
Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes of November 10, 2010

IBHE-FAC Report (Professor Lane Crothers, IBHE-FAC Representative)

Chairperson's Remarks

Student Body President's Remarks

Administrators' Remarks

· President Al Bowman

· Provost Sheri Everts
· Vice President of Student Affairs Steve Adams
· Vice President of Finance and Planning Dan Layzell
Academic Affairs Committee: Senator Stewart

Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Senator Kalter

Faculty Affairs Committee: Senator Wedwick

Planning and Finance Committee: Senator Van der Laan

Rules Committee: Senator Bailey
Information Items:

11.15.10.01
Academic Freedom Ethics and Grievance Blue Book Revisions – Inclusion of NTT (Rules Committee)

11.15.10.02
Academic Freedom Ethics and Grievance Policy Revisions – Inclusion of NTT (Rules Committee)

03.03.10.01
Statements of Economic Interests Policy (Rules Committee)

11.11.10.02
Use of Electronic Equipment for Surveillance Purposes-Revised (Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee)

10.08.09.05
Administrator Selection and Search Policy – Milner and Mennonite Search Committees (Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee)

10.29.10.01
Pass/Fail-Credit/No Credit Policy-Revised (Academic Affairs Committee)

11.11.10.01
Classified Research Policy-Draft 3 (Faculty Affairs Committee)

Communications

Executive Session: Honorary Degree Recipient Recommendations (President Bowman)

Adjournment

Motion XXXXII-27:  By Senator Fazel, seconded by Senator Marquis, to approve the Academic Senate Agenda of December 8, 2010. The AFEGC items were removed from the agenda. The agenda was unanimously approved.
Adjournment
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